
   
Warwick Sewer Authority 

125 Arthur W. Devine Boulevard 
Warwick, RI 02886 

Voice: (401) 739-4949 ● Fax: (401) 739-1414 
 

Aaron Guckian 
Chairman  

 
Janine L. Burke 

Executive Director 

 

Scott Avedisian 
Mayor 

 
 

 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 
Thursday, April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 

Warwick Sewer Authority Conference Room 
125 Arthur W. Devine Boulevard 

Warwick, RI  02886 
 

Board Members present: Guests: 

Aaron Guckian, Chairman Councilman Ed Ladouceur, Ward 5 

Gary Jarvis, Secretary Roger Robitaille 

Steve Sylven, P.E. Erik Meserve, P. E., AECOM 

Gary P. Marino Michelle Komar 

 Eugene Nadeau 

Board member not present: William Russo 

Peter Ginaitt Roger Durand 

 John M. Kennedy 

 Bob Cushman 

Staff present:  

Janine L. Burke, Executive Director John Revens, WSA Legal Counsel 

Mathew Solitro, Collection Systems Manager Scott Goodinson, Asst. Superintendent 

Lynn F. Owens, Administrative Coordinator Lynda Ortiz, Finance/Customer Serv. Mngr. 

 
 

1. Call to Order  At 5:34 p.m. Chairman Guckian called this meeting to order. 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  All those in attendance rose to salute the American flag 
and recited the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

At 5:35 p.m. Chairman Guckian opened the public hearing session. 
 

3. PUBLIC HEARING:   WSA FISCAL YEAR 2015 BUDGET PROPOSAL 
WSA USAGE RATE ADJUSTMENTS FY15/FY 16 

 
Director Burke advised the audience to sign in on the available sign in sheets if 
they wanted to speak on the proposed rate adjustments or the proposed budget.  
Public comment cards were available to attendees if they wanted to submit their 
questions or comments in writing to the WSA.  Director Burke stated the public 
comment period will remain open until mid-May which is when the City Council 
must print the proposed budgets.   
 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 2 

Director Burke provided a PowerPoint presentation on the Fiscal Year 2015 
budget and also the recommended rate increases for the next two fiscal years.  
Resources available for attendees included a four-page handout of the proposed 
FY2015 budget proposal and a three-page handout of financial projections 
provided by WSA rate consultant B & E Consulting LLC.   
 
Summary of FY15 WSA Budget Proposal: 
 
$21,425,900 (0.9% decrease versus FY14 budget) 

 $6,338,833 operations and maintenance budget 

 $14,537,067 debt service budget 

 Includes $550,000 for annual Capital Improvement Plan 
 
Regarding usage rates, the WSA’s rate consultant is proposing a 2% increase 
from the original rates set in 2011 for the FY2015 budget year, and is proposing 
a 2% increase from original rates set in 2011 for the FY2016 budget year.   
 
Following Director Burke’s presentation, the floor was opened for public 
comment.   
 
Michelle Komar commented that because the proposed FY2015 budget and rate 
adjustment documents were not available to the public until 4/23/14 and 4/24/14 
respectively, she was not well prepared to comment, and asked the Board to 
hold their vote on the budget and rates increases until all public comments are 
presented.  (Editorial note:  Public comments will be accepted until May 17th.  
The WSA Board plans to vote on the rates and budget at its May 22nd meeting). 
 
Referring to the rate adjustment documents, Ms. Komar asked for detailed 
information on what sewer assessment revenue pays for.  She inquired about 
itemized “Projects delay to FY 2018 & 2019” and asked what those projects are.  
She asked where the future new sewer project expenses are listed.  She would 
also like to know where the DEM plant upgrades and levee improvements 
approved for bonding by the City Council are reflected in the budget documents 
and the rate adjustment documents.   

 
Mr. John Kennedy referred to the original rate study document approved in 2011.  
Relative to the rate increases, he asked where the funds collected were applied, 
specifically the 16% revenue increase which was to be applied to plant upgrades.  
Director Burke briefly explained how revenue is applied to expenses.  She 
pointed out that because the plant upgrade was delayed, anticipated debt service 
for 2013 was not realized.  She noted that the rate consultant’s current 
assessment lists a “net operating surplus”.   She stated WSA accelerated the 
repayment to the general fund, which was part of the approved 5-year rate 
structure plan.  Mr. Kennedy questioned if there is anything in the enabling 
legislation that requires WSA to advise the rate payers when revenues are 
reallocated to pay other expenses.    

 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 3 

Mr. Bob Cushman referred to the 2014 City of Warwick budget and asked about 
the line item “Enterprise fund transfers”.  Director Burke stated WSA is charged a 
certain percentage of budgeted costs for city departments that provide service to 
WSA.  Director Burke listed services provided by the City, but said she would 
have to look at last year’s budget for a breakdown of the charges.  She stated the 
proposed FY2015 budget includes a $1.4 million transfer to the City for services 
provided. 
 
Mr. Cushman asked for a line item breakdown of those services and charges.   

 
Mr. Cushman asked where the WSA pension contributions are included in the 
budget.  He stated when employees retire from WSA, they get lifetime pension 
and health benefits. He asked where in this budget is the City reimbursed for that 
liability. 
 
Director Burke stated it is an important question that has been brought up before; 
she will look into it. 

 
Mr. Cushman stated he wants to see where in this budget the legacy costs are 
documented.  He wants to see the actuarial reports of unfunded liabilities that the 
WSA should be paying the City, the pension and health care costs.  He asked if 
there are any computations or reports that document the cost associated with the 
retired WSA employees where WSA should be reimbursing the City of Warwick. 

 
Mr. Roger Durand commented that people who are getting sewer bills were not 
notified that the FY2013 usage rate increase, scheduled to be applied to debt 
services for the facility upgrades, went to pay back the City.  He stated this is a 
credibility issue for the WSA.  He asked how much money has WSA received on 
the 12 ½% rate increase.  Director Burke stated she would have to look at 
previous budgets to see the difference in the usage revenues and suggested that 
Mr. Durand look at the handouts available tonight.  He asked how much will WSA 
actually have in the kitty to pay for the phosphorus upgrade.  Director Burke 
stated Contract 91 has an estimated value of $14.5 million; construction will 
begin within the month.  She stated the WSA borrows funds to construct and 
repays the debt over twenty years.  She said the annual debt service payment is 
itemized in the budget to repay the borrowed funds.  She stated the approved 
rate plan is valid and will pay the bills. 
 
She offered to get Mr. Durand a copy of the audit to observe the trends.   

 
Mr. Bill Russo inquired about the sludge removal budget line item.  Director 
Burke stated WSA has two vendor contracts for the removal and disposal of 
sludge, a necessary fixed cost.  She stated there are other processes that can be 
used to dispose of the sludge; substantial capital investment is needed for those 
processes.   

 
Mr. Eugene Nadeau asked where in the budget is the cost of the facility 
improvements.  Director Burke stated the proposed FY15 budget reflects a slight 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 4 

increase in debt service and principal and interest line items.  She stated in the 
first year of borrowing WSA will pay interest on the loan until the loan is fully 
drawn down, then principal payments begin.  She stated annual payments on the 
loans are included in the budget.   
 
Mr. Nadeau related the downturn in connection and consumption rates to the 
current economic situation.   

 
Hearing no further public comment, this public hearing was closed at 6:30 p.m. 

 
At 6:31 p.m. the Board started its regular business meeting. 
 

4. Approval of Minutes 
 

a. Approval of minutes from the regular meeting held March 26, 2014. 
 
ACTION:  Mr. Sylven moved approval of the minutes as submitted.  Mr. 
Marino seconded the motion.  Chairman Guckian, Messrs. Sylven, Jarvis 
and Marino voted in favor of the motion.  Motion approved. 
 

5. AWT-Phosphorus & Flood Control Project, Contract No. 91 
 

a. Erik Meserve, P.E., AECOM, submitted the monthly progress report and 
updated combined schedule:  
 
Consent Decree & Funding 

 Coordinated with RIDEM to confirm compliance with SRF 
funding requirements. 

 Assisted WSA in preparation of MBE/WBE documentation. 
Construction Progress 

 Completed bid review and submitted bid tabulation and 
summary of bid letter to WSA for review. 

 Based on discussions with Hart and investigations of their 
past work, AECOM is of the opinion that they have the 
requisite experience and capacity to perform the work. 

 Prepared contract documents for execution. 
Permitting 

 Submitted responses to RIDEM and RIDOT regarding prior 
permit applications. 

 Received approved RIDEM Wetland Permit. 

 Responded to questions via email from RIDOT on the permit 
application. 

 Continued assisting RIDOT in the easement process. 
 
 

b. Award of Contract 91:  Advanced Wastewater Treatment Facility 
Phosphorus Removal Upgrade Flood Control and Mitigation 
Hart Engineering Corporation:  $14,479,000.00 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 5 

 
ACTION:   AECOM presented a letter summarizing the bids, listing Hart 
Engineering as the low bidder.  A bid tabulation was included with the 
letter. 
 
Mr. Sylven asked about the significantly lower bid submitted by Hart 
Engineering, and asked if AECOM is confident that Hart didn’t miss 
anything in their submittal.  Mr. Meserve stated Hart has done work at 
WSA in the past; they know better than the other bidders what they’ll find 
in the ground.  Mr. Meserve stated he asked Hart that question and they 
said they were confident that they had not missed anything.  He stated the 
largest cost difference was in the process work. 
 
Mr. Sylven moved to approve the award of Contract No. 91 to the low 
bidder, Hart Engineering, in the amount of $14,479,000.00.  Mr. Jarvis 
seconded the motion.  Chairman Guckian, Messrs. Sylven, Jarvis and 
Marino voted in favor of the motion.  Motion approved. 

 
6. Flood Protection and Mitigation 

 
a. Bellows Street Pumping Station 

 
i. Crossman Engineering to submit progress report   

 
Director Burke reported that the station has been running for two 
months now with no problems.  She stated final fencing and 
landscaping will be completed soon.  She stated an arbitrator has 
been selected but no arbitration date has been set.  Mr. Solitro 
reported that the owners of ETCO are satisfied with the planned 
closeout work (extra shrubs will be planted at their request). 

 
7.   Operations and Maintenance Division 

 
a. Purchase Authorization:  Cedar Swamp pump station improvements:  

Purchase of electrical equipment: 

 Russ Electric:  $15,500.00 

 Granite City Electric:  $12,950.00 

 Electrical Wholesalers:  $14,216.33 
 
ACTION:  Director Burke stated after the line collapse at this station 
(February 2011), WSA borrowed money for the emergency repair work. 
She stated with the remaining balance of funds, WSA plans to upgrade 
the original electrical equipment at the station.   Director Burke stated 
WSA staff will install the equipment with the assistance of Kent County 
Electrical Services (where necessary).  She stated if there are funds 
remaining, we may upgrade the HVAC system.  She stated the easement 
is in place to proceed with the electrical upgrades. 
 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 6 

Mr. Sylven made a motion to appropriate $42,666.33 for the electrical 
improvements at the Cedar Swamp pump station.  Mr. Marino seconded 
the motion.  Chairman Guckian, Messrs. Sylven, Jarvis and Marino voted 
in favor of the motion.  Motion approved. 
 

b. Bid 2015-003:  Wastewater Treatment Chemicals 

 Liquid Sodium Hypochlorite:  Univar USA, Inc. 

 Potassium Permanganate:  Carus Corp. 

 Sodium Bisulfite:  JCI Jones 

 Liquid Alum:  Holland Company 

 Liquid Calcium Nitrate:  Blake Group 

 Liquid Sodium Chlorite:  International Dioxide 
 
ACTION:  Mr. Goodinson reviewed the results of Bid 2015-003; eighteen 
vendors bid on the chemicals.  He stated the competition resulted in 
reduced pricing benefitting WSA.  He stated the contracts are for one 
year, with the option of two 1-year extensions upon mutual agreement.   
 
Mr. Jarvis moved to accept the low bids for the wastewater treatment 
chemicals.  Mr. Marino seconded the motion.  Chairman Guckian, Messrs. 
Sylven, Jarvis and Marino voted in favor of the motion.  Motion approved. 
 

8. Collection System Division 
 

a. Proposal for Services:  cured in place pipe lining 
Approximately 360 feet of 8” pipe on Sargent Street 
Advanced Pipe Inspection, Inc.:  $18,500.00 
 
ACTION:  Director Burke stated we are looking to repair a section of old 
sewer pipe in poor condition on Sargent Street (Contract 1 vitrified clay 
sewer lines completed in 1965).  Mr. Solitro stated following a report of 
roots impacting a sewer line on private property, WSA flushed its main 
line, conducted a video camera line inspection and cleared its line of roots 
and debris.  He stated now is the optimal time to line the old pipe.  Director 
Burke stated Advanced Pipe Inspection has done slip lining for WSA on 
Colorado and New York Avenues, and in a pipe that collapsed at the 
plant. (Pricing for slip lining through Contract BB and pricing to replace the 
line using Contract BB were also provided to the Board). 
 
The Board members asked about bypass pumping, traffic control and  
root removal.  Mr. Solitro stated Advanced Pipe Inspection will conduct 
bypass pumping using its equipment (Director Burke will clarify that in the 
contract agreement).  He stated WSA will oversee traffic control and that 
root removal is already complete. 
 
Mr. Marino moved approval.  Mr. Sylven seconded the motion.  Chairman 
Guckian, Messrs. Sylven, Jarvis and Marino voted in favor of the motion.  
Motion approved. 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 7 

 
9. Billing Services 

 
a. Sewer Assessment Deferment (New) 

 
Name Year Address Reason 

Roger A. Robitaille 1 88 Lewis Street, Plat 367 Lot 516 6.42 acres residential 

   
ACTION:  Mr. Robitaille discussed with the Board and Director Burke the deferment 
option and the option of abatement if he can document the existence of wetlands and 
delineate the area of wetlands on his property. 
 
Mr. Jarvis moved approval of the deferment.  Mr. Marino seconded the motion.  
Chairman Guckian, Messrs. Sylven, Jarvis and Marino voted in favor of the motion.  
Motion approved. 
 

b. Assessment Abatement 
 

Name Service Address Reason Amount 

One Ninety Six 199 
Bethel St LLC 
c/o Mukesh Tandon 

Plat 330 Lot 0196 
v/l Church Avenue 

Lot size 11.76 acres, assessed in 2006 
using acreage formula. Survey and 

biologist’s report confirm that less than 
one acre of parcel is not wetlands.   

Re-assess on square footage.   

$133,267.30 

 
ACTION:  Tabled from January 23, 2014 meeting.  Property owner asks that this be 
considered at the May 2014 meeting. 
 
The Board agreed to table this matter to the May 22, 2014 meeting. 

 
10. Administrative Items 

 
a. Draft Amendments to Enabling Legislation 

 
DISCUSSION/ACTION:  No discussion. 

 
b. Director’s Report   

 
i. Financial Report     
ii. Administrative Schedule  

 
Director Burke stated a financial report for FY2014 through March 31st 
was provided to the Board.  She stated the Sewer Review Commission 
will meet on April 25th and the City Council will consider proposed changes 
to the WSA Enabling Legislation on May 12th. 
 

c. Chairman’s Report 
 

i. Update on Sewer Review Commission 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 8 

 
No discussion. 
 

11. Consent Agenda - Correspondence   
 

a. WSA to West Warwick Sewer Commission Plat 253 Lot 14 (3-25-14) 
b. WSA to West Warwick Sewer Commission Plat 253 Lot 11 (3-27-14) 
c. WSA Financial Report to City Council for March 2014 (4-2-14) 
d. WSA to RICWFA requesting SRF funding of $14,000,000 (4-7-14) 
e. WSA to RIDEM regarding FY 2015 Project Priority List (4-7-14) 
f. WSA to EDA:  Bellow Street Quarterly Financial report (4-15-14) 

 
ACTION:  Director Burke stated Item d. (next year’s request for borrowing) 
includes scheduled sewer construction in Governor Francis Phase III and 
O’Donnell Hill, as well as a request to extend the repayment of sewer 
loans to thirty years.  She stated this is being discussed in the Sewer 
Review Commission meetings.   
 
Mr. Jarvis and Mr. Sylven asked about moving forward with finalizing 
engineering plans to construct new sewers.  Director Burke stated she has 
asked engineers from Garofalo and GRA for cost estimates to complete 
the project designs.  She will forward the planned construction schedule to 
the Board.  She stated the schedule includes the six projects approved for 
funding by the City Council. 
 
Mr. Jarvis moved to accept the consent agenda.  Mr. Sylven seconded the 
motion.  Chairman Guckian, Messrs. Sylven, Jarvis and Marino voted in 
favor of the motion.  Motion approved. 

 
12.   New Business 

 
Introduction of new business to be docketed for an upcoming meeting or to be 
referred to the executive director or legal counsel for comment. 
 
No new business presented. 

 
13.  Old Business  

 
a. Amendments to By-Laws 
b. Modifications to Septage Hauling Regulations 
c. Bayside I-III Sewer Project:  Amendment to GRA contract/design services  
d. Infrastructure Improvement:  48” line under Rte. 95  
e. Sewer Assessment Deferment Policy  (6-27-13) 
f. Sewer Assessment Deferment:  Plat 332 Lot 483 (11-20-13) 

 
DISCUSSION/ACTION:  The status of Item 13.c. was discussed.   
 



Warwick Sewer Authority Public Hearing/Board Meeting Minutes 
April 24, 2014, 5:30 p.m. 
WSA Conference Room, 125 Arthur W. Devine Blvd., Warwick, RI 
 

Page 9 

14.   PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD  At 7:18 p.m. Chairman Guckian opened the 
meeting to public comment. 
 
Mr. Eugene Nadeau shared his comment with the Board. 
 

15. Adjournment   
 
Mr. Sylven moved to end the meeting.  Messrs. Marino and Jarvis seconded the 
motion.  Chairman Guckian, Messrs. Sylven, Jarvis and Marino voted in favor of 
the motion.  Motion approved. 
 
At 7:21 p.m. this meeting ended. 

 
 
 

____________________________________            ______________________ 
Gary C. Jarvis, WSA Secretary    Date of Approval 

 
“Minutes are recorded pursuant to the Rhode Island General Laws § 42-46-7 for the purpose of 
capturing all general information relevant to the meeting. For a more comprehensive 
assessment of minutes, audio files shall be archived with the Warwick Sewer Authority and 
available upon request.” 
 
 
 


